
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
TUESDAY, 24 JANUARY 2023 AT 3.30 PM (OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WHICHEVER IS THE LATER) 
 
VIA MS TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 13 December 2022  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Corporate Office Estate New lease  (Pages 7 - 10) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 16 January 2023 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 13 December 2022 Via MS Teams  

 

 

Councillor Johnny Denis spoke on item 6 (see minute 61) 

 

55. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 8 NOVEMBER 2022  

 

55.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8 
November 2022. 

 

56. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

56.1 There were none. 

 

57. URGENT ITEMS  

 

57.1 There were none. 

 

58. REPORTS  

 

58.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

59. PARTNERSHIPS FOR PEOPLE AND PLACE PROJECT: AWARD OF GRANT  

 

59.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Assistant Chief Executive. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

DECISIONS 
 
59.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Agree the Stage 3 delivery plan for the Partnerships for People and Place Project as set out 
in the report; 
 
2) Approve the Council procuring a contract for delivery of stage three of the Partnerships for 
People and Place project (as detailed in paragraphs 2.3 to 2.6 of the report); 
 
3) Agree to use funding from the Partnership for People and Place Project to award one or more 
grants to organisations that are already supporting vulnerable people through the winter months 
as set out in paragraph 2.8 of the report; 
 
4) Delegate authority to the Assistant Chief Executive to: 
 

a) approve the award of the contract following the procurement process;  

b) agree the terms of any grant agreements to be entered into as well as approving, in 

consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, the value of the grant to be awarded and to 

who it is awarded; and  

c) take all other actions necessary to give effect to the recommendations in the report. 

 
REASONS 
 
59.3 The Local Place Board and Local Place Working Group have approved the suggested 
delivery plan for stage three of the Partnerships for People and Place project.  
 
59.4 The stage 3 Delivery Plan and procurement of a contract to deliver the workstreams 
identified in paragraphs 2.3 to 2.6 of the report will ensure that the measures can be delivered 
within the timescales for the Partnerships for People and Place project.  
 
59.5 Entering into a series of grant agreements with local partners as set out in paragraph 2.7 
of the report will enable the project to address the concerns raised by local partners at the co-
design workshops about the immediate needs of residents in the area, and with a view to 
providing continued support to residents beyond the end of the project.  
 
59.6 The delegations to the Assistant Chief Executive will ensure effective administration of 
the grants. 

 

60. FORMER ETCHINGHAM CE PRIMARY SCHOOL SITE  

 

60.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
60.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) declare property known as Former Etchingham CE Primary School site (the Property) surplus 
to requirements; 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 
2) approve the disposal of the Property and any ancillary documentation required to give effect 
to the disposal as summarised below; and 
 
3) delegate to the Chief Operating Officer to approve sale by Auction to secure best value in 
accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 1972 and to agree the terms of the disposal 
and any ancillary documentation. 
 
REASONS 
 
60.3 The property is no longer required for East Sussex County Council (ESCC) operational 
purposes.  
 
60.4 Disposal of the property will reduce cost and liability and to achieve a capital receipt. The 
capital receipt will be used as required in line with any directive from the Department for 
Education (DfE). 

 

61. LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME: CONSULTATION RESPONSE  

 

61.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer together with 
exempt information contained in a later agenda item. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
61.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: approve the response to Wealden District Council on 
proposed changes to their Local Council Tax Reduction Schemes (LCTRS) for 2023/24 as set 
out below: 
 
East Sussex County Council recognises the impact that the pandemic had, and cost of living 
crisis is having, on local communities, particularly, those who are vulnerable, both financially 
and for other reasons. 
 
As you will be aware, in common with all local authorities, the County Council continues to face 
significant financial challenges in responding to day-to-day service demands and the ongoing 
impact of the pandemic. As we wait for the government to provide details of funding through the 
local government finance settlement for 2023/24, the authority’s Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) presents a deficit position by 2025/26 of £29.7m. Any loss of income from Council Tax 
arising from these proposed changes would only serve to increase the deficit and consequently 
adversely impact the level of services provided to residents.  
 
Council Tax is the County Council’s most important funding stream (73% of net budget in 
2022/23) and we rely on certainty of this income to enable the County Council to effectively plan 
services for the future. The Council will need to take account of any further reduction in the tax 
base on its income when considering options for achieving a balanced budget for 2023/24 and 
beyond. Any reductions in income from Wealden District residents will be felt across the whole 
of East Sussex and potentially impact on the services on which the most vulnerable in the whole 
rely. 
 
Thereby,  East Sussex County Council can only support Wealden District Council’s proposals to 
change its LCTRS if opportunities are sought to mitigate the loss of Council Tax income, for 

Page 5



 

 

 

 

example, in the review of the treatment of empty properties. In addition, the County Council 
would request that every effort is made to implement and maximise income from the Council 
Tax flexibilities arising from the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill.  
 
It is also requested that Wealden District Council provide East Sussex County Council, as the 
major precepting authority, with regular monitoring data that provides evidence of the actual 
impact of such changes. 
 
REASONS 
 
61.3 Wealden District Council are consulting on proposals to change their LCTRS which will 
see a reduction on Council Tax income received by the County Council. Whilst the proposals 
address particular concerns within the authority, the impact of the reduction in income will be felt 
for County Council services that support the needs of residents across the whole of East 
Sussex.  
 
61.4 The response to the consultation reflects potential negative impact of the changes and 
recommends only supporting the proposed amendments to the LCTRS if opportunities are 
sought to mitigate the loss of Council Tax income, including the flexibilities arising from the 
Levelling UP and Regeneration Bill. 

 

62. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

 

62.1 It was RESOLVED to exclude the public and press from the meeting for the remaining 
agenda items on the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as specified in paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 

63. LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME: CONSULTATION RESPONSE - 
EXEMPT INFORMATION  

 

63.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer which provided 
exempt information in support of an earlier item on the agenda. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
63.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to note the information contained in the report in support 
of an earlier agenda item. 
 
REASON 
 
63.3 The report contained exempt information in relation to an earlier item on the agenda. 

 

 

Page 6



 

Report to:  Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 
 
Date of meeting: 24 January 2023 
 
By:   Chief Operating Officer  
 
Title: Corporate office estate; new lease for St Mark’s House, 

Eastbourne 
 
Purpose: To agree a 12-month lease of St Mark’s House for use as part of 

the Corporate Office provision 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to: 

1)  approve the proposed ‘agreement for a lease’ and new lease terms of St Mark’s 
House, Eastbourne; and 

 
2)  delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to approve the final lease 

negotiations; the signing and completion by the Council of the lease to the 
Property; any agreement for lease and related documentation; to take any 
other actions considered appropriate to give effect to the above 
recommendation to secure best value in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1999.  

 

1 Background 

1.1 The corporate office provision includes St Mark’s House, Eastbourne. The Council is 
undertaking a review of its corporate office requirements, as a key part of the 
Council’s Asset Management Plan 2020-2025, to drive efficiency from its assets and 
by reducing costs, as well as reducing carbon emissions. 

1.2 The Council has two office bases in Eastbourne and will be seeking to have one 
base by early 2024. St Mark’s House, Eastbourne is a leased property with the 
current lease expiring on 13 April 2023.  A plan of the location of the property is 
shown at appendix 1.  

1.3 The freehold owner of the building plans to re-develop the site in due course.  The 
Council intends to enter into a 12-month lease to commence at the end of the current 
lease (April 2023).  

1.4 A lease extension is required as St Mark’s House currently provides the sole office 
base in Eastbourne for Children’s Services who also work very closely with different 
partner agencies. The lease extension will assist the organisation in further planning 
of its ongoing provision of office accommodation in Eastbourne from early 2024.   

  

2 Supporting information 

2.1 The proposed lease will be for 12 months, and the rent payable is £384,900 per annum 
which represents an increase of £20,000 per annum above the current rent.  The rental 
of the premises is exclusive of business rates, utilities and cleaning, and the lease will 
place liability on the Council for repairs. This is the case with the current lease, so the 
proposed extension places no additional operational liability on East Sussex County 
Council (ESCC).  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2.2 The Council proposed an ‘agreement for a lease’ and a separate lease for the 
extension period.  The ‘agreement for a lease’ is a document that provides certainty 
for the Council, knowing the new lease will commence in April 2023. The ‘agreement 
for a lease’ effectively locks in the landlord and the Council (as tenant). The new lease 
will also include a tenant’s break clause so the Council could terminate the lease before 
March 2024 if needed. Subject to Lead Member approval, the ‘agreement for a lease’ 
will be completed in late January 2023 and the new lease will commence in April 2023.   

2.3 The increased rent for 2023/24 will be managed within Property Services’ corporate 
office budget.   

 

3 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 To allow for continuation of corporate use for the Children's Services Department and 
their partnerships the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is 
recommended to: 

3.1.1 approve the proposed ‘agreement for a lease’ and new lease terms of St 
Mark’s House, Eastbourne; and 

 
3.1.2 delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to approve the final lease 

negotiations; the signing and completion by the Council of the lease to the 
Property; any agreement for lease and related documentation; to take any 
other actions considered appropriate to give effect to the above 
recommendation to secure best value in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1999.  

 

ROS PARKER 
Chief Operating Officer 
 
Contact Officers:  
Nigel Brown  
Tel. No. 07394 410630 
Email: Nigel.Brown@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
Barry Ling 
Tel. No. 07971 188596  
Email: Barry.Ling@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
LOCAL MEMBER 
Councillor Pat Rodohan  

 

Page 8

mailto:Nigel.Brown@eastsussex.gov.uk
mailto:Barry.Ling@eastsussex.gov.uk


1:1,250Scale:

Be
rna

rd L
ane

En
ys 

Road
Upperton Gardens

Be
atri

ce 
Lan

e

Wharf Road

Station Parade

Upperton Road
The

 Av
enu

e

Upperton Gardens

Southfields Road

Hartf
ield

 Road

Upperton Road

Upperton Gardens

Upperton Lane

´

St. Marks Main Lease Plan
Author: FM Date: 09/11/2022

Aerial Photography © Getmapping.com 2022. © East Sussex County Council 2022.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100019601.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with,
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Cities Revealed aerial photography © The GeoInformation Group 2012
© database right Landmark Information Group Ltd. All rights reserved 2022

Page 9

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 13 December 2022
	4 Corporate Office Estate New lease
	Appendix 1


